# CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY **REPORTER**

No 6325

WEDNESDAY 13 NOVEMBER 2013

Vol cxliv No 8

# CONTENTS

Notices	
Calendar	93
Discussion on Tuesday, 19 November 2013:	
Cancellation	93
Election to the Council	93
Election to the Board of Scrutiny	93
Vacancies, appointments, etc.	
Electors to the Paul Mellon Professorship of	
American History: Notice	93
Vacancies in the University	94
Election	94
Events, courses, etc.	
Announcement of lectures, seminars, etc.	94
Notices by the General Board	
Institute of Public Health: Notice	95
Notices by Faculty Boards, etc.	
Human, Social, and Political Sciences Tripos,	
Part I: Set texts	96

Form and conduct of examinations, 2014	
Chemical Engineering Tripos, Part IIA	96
Engineering Tripos	97
Philosophy Tripos, Part II	97
Obituary Notices	
Obituary Notice	98
End of the Official Part of the 'Reporter'	
Report of Discussion	
Tuesday, 5 November 2013	98
College Notices	
Elections	100
Vacancies	100
Events	100
External Notices	
University of Oxford	100



## NOTICES

## Calendar

- 29 November, *Friday*. End of third quarter of Michaelmas Term.
- 30 November, Saturday. Congregation of the Regent House at 2 p.m.
- 3 December, *Tuesday*. Discussion of the Regent House at 2 p.m.
- 6 December, Friday. Full Term ends.

#### Discussions at 2 p.m.

Congregations

3 December

30 November, Saturday at 2 p.m.

# Discussion on Tuesday, 19 November 2013: Cancellation

The Vice-Chancellor gives notice that the Discussion announced for Tuesday, 19 November 2013, will not take place as there are no Reports ready for discussion.

# **Election to the Council**

#### 8 November 2013

The Vice-Chancellor announces that the following candidate has been nominated in accordance with Statute A, IV, 2 for election to the Council in class (a) (Heads of Colleges), and that it has been certified to him that the candidate has consented to be nominated:

Professor Dame JEAN OLWEN THOMAS, CTH, nominated by Professor A. D. Yates, R, and Professor I. H. White, JE

No other persons having been nominated, Professor Thomas is duly elected, to serve with immediate effect until 31 December 2014.

# **Election to the Board of Scrutiny**

#### 8 November 2013

Regulation 2 for the election of members of the Board of Scrutiny (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 113) provides that, if at an election insufficient nominations are received to fill all the places either in class (c)(i) or in class (c)(i), the Council shall appoint as many members as may be necessary.

No person having been nominated in the election for one member of the Board of Scrutiny in class (c)(i) (a person who has been a member of the Regent House for not more than ten years on 1 October 2013), the Council will be asked to make an appointment to that vacancy.

## VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS, ETC.

# Electors to the Paul Mellon Professorship of American History: Notice

The Council has appointed members of the *ad hoc* Board of Electors to the Paul Mellon Professorship of American History as follows:

Dr Jennifer Barnes, MUR, in the Chair, as the Vice-Chancellor's deputy

(a) on the nomination of the Council Professor Joyce Chaplin, Harvard University Professor Lizabeth Cohen, Harvard University

- (b) on the nomination of the General Board
  Dr Joya Chatterji, T
  Professor Martin Daunton, TH
  Professor Daniel Rodgers, Princeton University
- (c) on the nomination of the Faculty of History Professor Richard Carwardine, University of Oxford Professor Michael O'Brien, JE Professor David Reynolds, CHR

# Vacancies in the University

A full list of current vacancies can be found at http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk.

**Herchel Smith University Senior Lecturer in Competition Law in the Faculty of Law**; salary: £50,186–£53,233; closing date: 9 December 2013; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/2321/; quote reference: JK01968

University Lecturer (Tenure-Track Faculty Position) in the Department of Physiology, Development, and Neuroscience; salary: £37,382–£47,314; closing date: 3 January 2014; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/ job/2365/; quote reference: PM02005

**Research Fellows in Probability (two posts) in the Department of Pure Mathematics and Mathematical Statistics**; salary: £27,854–£36,298; tenure: fixed term for two or three years; closing date: 4 January 2014; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/2489/; quote reference: LF02124

**Research Fellows in Pure Mathematics (three posts) in the Department of Pure Mathematics and Mathematical Statistics**; salary: £27,854–£36,298; tenure: fixed term for up to three years; closing date: 4 January 2014; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/2488/; quote reference: LF02123

**Research Associate in the Department of Medicine**; salary: £27,854–£36,298; tenure: fixed term until 30 September 2017 in the first instance; closing date: 6 December 2013; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/2493/; quote reference: RC02128

**Head of the International Student Team in the Academic Division**; salary: £37,382–£47,314; closing date: 29 November 2013; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/2491/; quote reference: AK02126

The University values diversity and is committed to equality of opportunity.

The University has a responsibility to ensure that all employees are eligible to live and work in the UK.

# Election

The following election has been made:

Professor Anne Christine Davis, B.Sc., *London*, Ph.D., *Bristol*, Professor of Theoretical Physics, Department of Applied Mathematics and Theoretical Physics, elected Professor of Mathematical Physics (1967) with effect from 1 September 2013.

## EVENTS, COURSES, ETC.

## Announcement of lectures, seminars, etc.

The University offers a large number of lectures, seminars, and other events, many of which are free of charge, to members of the University and others who are interested. Details can be found on Faculty and Departmental websites, and in the following resources.

The What's On website (http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/whatson/) carries details of exhibitions, music, theatre and film, courses, and workshops, and is searchable by category and date. Both an RSS feed and a subscription email service are available.

Talks.cam (http://www.talks.cam.ac.uk/) is a fully searchable talks listing service, and talks can be subscribed to and details downloaded.

Brief details of upcoming events are given below.

Africa Archaeology Group Seminar Series	<i>The rags of time: art, cloth, and history in global</i> <i>Africa</i> , by Christopher Spring, at 4.30 p.m. on 19 November 2013	http://www.mcdonald.cam.ac.uk/ events-all/afr2
Law	The 8th Alistair Berkley Memorial Lecture, <i>Africa:</i> <i>Just rewards or just resilient</i> , by Richard Dowden, at 6 p.m. on 14 November 2013	http://www.law.cam.ac.uk/press/ events/2013/11/8th-alistair-berkley- memorial-lecture-africa-just-rewards- or-just-resilient/2393
Mongolia and Inner Asia Studies Unit	Mountaineering in a changing climate, by Kurt Diemberger, Doug Scott, and Georg Kaser, at 5.30 p.m. on 22 November. Booking available at http://www. mountaineeringchangingclimate.eventbrite.com/	http://talks.cam.ac.uk/talk/ index/47292

## NOTICES BY THE GENERAL BOARD

# **Institute of Public Health: Notice**

(Statutes and Ordinances, p. 611)

#### With immediate effect

The General Board, on the recommendation of the Faculty Board of Clinical Medicine and the Committee of Management of the Institute of Public Health, have approved amendments to the constitution and management of the Institute of Public Health.

By amending the regulations for the management and the Director of the Institute so as to read:

#### Management

**1.** The Institute of Public Health shall be an institution within the Faculty of Clinical Medicine, and shall be under the general control of a Committee of Management, which shall consist of:

- (a) the Director;
- (b) the Regius Professor of Physic;
- (c) one person appointed by the General Board;
- (d) one person appointed by the Faculty Board of Clinical Medicine;
- (e) one person appointed by the Medical Research Council;
- (f) one person appointed by the Secretary of State for Health;
- (g) not more than five persons co-opted at the discretion of the Committee.

2. Members in classes (c), (d), (e), and (f) shall be appointed in the Michaelmas Term to serve for four years from 1 January following their appointment. Co-opted members in class (g) shall serve until 31 December of the year in which they are co-opted or of the year next following, as the Committee shall determine at the time of their co-optation.

**3.** The Committee shall elect one of their members other than the Director to be their Chairman and to serve for three years from 1 January following her or his election. The Director of the Institute shall serve as Secretary of the Committee.

**4.** Subject to the powers of the Council, the General Board, and the Faculty Boards concerned, the duties of the Committee shall be as follows:

- (*a*) in collaboration with the Faculty Board of Clinical Medicine, and with any other Faculty Boards concerned, to promote teaching in the field of public health, and to promote research in that field and the publication of the results of such research;
- (b) to collaborate with outside bodies in the encouragement of teaching and research in public health;
- (c) to administer funds allocated to them for the purposes specified in (a) and (b) above;
- (*d*) to establish such advisory bodies, representing interests and activities associated with public health as it sees fit;
- (e) to approve annual estimates prepared by the Executive Committee for submission to the General Board;
- (f) to make an Annual Report to the Faculty Board of Clinical Medicine on the affairs of the Institute;
- (g) the Committee of Management may designate, for a period not exceeding five years at a time, one of the Executive Committee of the Institute to act as Deputy Director.
- 5. The Institute shall have an Executive Committee, the membership of which shall be:
- (*a*) the Director of the Institute;
- (b) the Head of the Department of Public Health and Primary Care;
- (c) the Director of the MRC Epidemiology Unit;
- (*d*) the Director of the MRC Biostatistics Unit;
- (e) the Heads of any Public Health England Units based at the Institute;
- (f) other persons co-opted at the discretion of the Committee.
- 6. The Executive Committee shall:
- (*a*) promote and enable research and teaching in the field of public health and the publication of the results of such research;
- (b) administer funds allocated to the Institute to support its mission;
- (c) prepare annual estimates for submission to the Committee of Management.

### Director of the Institute

**1.** There shall be a University office of Director of the Institute, which may be held in conjunction with another University office.

**2.** The Director shall be appointed by the General Board on the recommendation of the Committee of Management. He or she shall hold office for five years, and shall be eligible for reappointment.

**3.** Under the general control of the Committee of Management, the Director shall be the administrative Head of the Institute, and shall be responsible for the direction of study and research in public health in the Institute and the promotion of the subject generally.

## NOTICES BY FACULTY BOARDS, ETC.

## Human, Social, and Political Sciences Tripos, Part I: Set texts

The Faculty Board of Human, Social, and Political Science give notice that the set texts for Paper ARC4 Akkadian Language I in Part I of the Human, Social, and Political Sciences Tripos in the 2013–14 academical year have been selected and are listed on the Faculty's website at http://www.hsps.cam.ac.uk/current-students/course-materials/c-m-files/ARC4-set-texts.

# FORM AND CONDUCT OF EXAMINATIONS, 2014

Notices by Faculty Boards, or other bodies concerned, of changes to the form and conduct of certain examinations to be held in 2014, by comparison with those examinations in 2013, are published below. Complete details of the form and conduct of all examinations are available from the Faculties or Departments concerned.

# **Chemical Engineering Tripos, Part IIA**

The Chemical Engineering and Biotechnology Syndicate give notice that, with effect from the examinations to be held in 2014, the form of the examination for Part IIA of the Chemical Engineering Tripos will be changed as follows.

#### Paper 1

Candidates will be required to answer five questions in all. At least two answers must be from Section A, and at least two answers must be from Section B. Section A will contain four questions on Fluid Mechanics. Section B will contain three questions on Equilibrium Thermodynamics.

#### Paper 2

Candidates will be required to answer five questions in all. At least one answer must be from Section A, at least one answer must be from Section B, and at least one answer must be from Section C. Section A will contain three questions on Separations. Section B will contain three questions on Heterogeneous Reactors. Section C will contain two questions on Bioprocessing.

#### Paper 3

Candidates will be required to answer five questions in all. At least one answer must be from Section A, at least one answer must be from Section B, and at least one answer must be from Section C. Section A will contain three questions on Process Dynamics and Control. Section B will contain three questions on Corrosion and Materials. Section C will contain two questions on Safety, Health, and Environment.

#### Paper 4

Candidates will be required to answer all questions. There will be one question on Radiative Heat Transfer, one question on Particle Processing, one question on Process Synthesis, one question on Partial Differential Equations, and one question on Statistics.

Candidates will be provided with the *Chemical Engineering Tripos Data Book* for all papers. *Two-Phase Flow Data Book* will be available for Paper 1.

Candidates will be allowed ten minutes of reading time before the examination starts.

# **Engineering Tripos**

The Faculty Board of Engineering give notice that, with effect from the examinations to be held in 2014, the form of the examinations for certain papers of the Engineering Tripos will be changed as follows:

#### Part Ib

#### Paper 8. Selected topics

The title of Section G has been changed from 'Engineering for life sciences' to 'Bioengineering'.

#### Part IIA

#### Group E papers

Candidates for all papers offered in Group E will be required to offer two questions from a choice of three, rather than two questions from a choice of four as in previous years.

#### 3G4. Medical imaging and 3-D computer graphics

Candidates will be required to answer three questions from a choice of four: the paper will no longer be divided into sections.

#### 4D8. Pre-stressed concrete

Candidates will be required to answer three questions (one in Section A and two in Section B) from a choice of five (two in Section A and three in Section B).

#### Part IIB

#### 4B13. Electronic sensors and instrumentation

The examination will consist of a one and a half hour written examination. Candidates will be required to answer three questions from a choice of four.

#### 4D8. Pre-stressed concrete

Candidates will be required to answer three questions (one in Section A and two in Section B) from a choice of five (two in Section A and three in Section B).

#### 4F2. Robust and nonlinear systems and control

This paper was previously known as Robust and non-linear control.

#### 4F5. Advanced communications and coding

This paper was previously known as Advanced wireless communications. The examination will consist of a one and a half hour written examination. Candidates will be required to answer three questions from a choice of four.

#### 4110. Nuclear reactor engineering

The examination will consist of a one and a half hour written examination. Candidates will be required to answer three questions from a choice of four.

#### 4111. Advanced fission and fusion systems

The examination will consist of a one and a half hour written examination. Candidates will be required to answer three questions from a choice of four.

#### 4M18. Present and future energy systems

The examination will consist of a one and a half hour written examination. Candidates will be required to answer three questions from a choice of four.

All other parts of the examination remain unchanged.

Full details of the examination requirements, including the project, course-work, and examination credit notices for each Part, can be found on the Department of Engineering's undergraduate teaching website: http://teaching.eng.cam.ac.uk/.

# Philosophy Tripos, Part II

The Faculty Board of Philosophy give notice that, with effect from the examinations to be held in 2014, the form of the examinations for certain papers in Part II of the Philosophy Tripos will be changed as follows:

#### Paper 1, Metaphysics, and Paper 2, Philosophy of mind

The part of the rubric that reads: 'The questions marked with an asterisk (\*) may **not** be answered by candidates also offering Paper 9: Wittgenstein' has been removed.

#### Paper 5, Philosophy in the Long Middle Ages

The rubric has been amended to: Answer three questions only, at least one from each section.

#### Paper 6, Philosophy of science

The rubric has been amended to: Answer three questions only.

#### **OBITUARY NOTICES**

#### **Obituary Notice**

MICHAEL SAMUEL NEUBERGER, M.A., *T*, Ph.D, *London*, Fellow of Trinity College, Honorary Professor in the University, Deputy Director of the MRC Laboratory of Molecular Biology, died on 26 October 2013, aged 59 years.

J. W. NICHOLLS, Registrary

END OF THE OFFICIAL PART OF THE 'REPORTER'

#### **REPORT OF DISCUSSION**

## **Tuesday, 5 November 2013**

A Discussion was held in the Senate-House. Pro-Vice-Chancellor Professor John Rallison was presiding, with the Registrary's deputy, the Senior Proctor, the Deputy Senior Proctor, and three other persons present.

The following Reports were discussed:

*First-stage Report of the Council, dated 14 October 2013, on the restructuring of space and refurbishment of the basement, ground, and first floors of the Department of Genetics on the Downing site (Reporter, 6321, 2013–14, p. 35).* 

No remarks were made on this Report.

*Report of the Council, dated 21 October 2013, on changes to Ordinances arising from the Technical Review of the Statutes* (*Reporter*, 6322, 2013–14, p. 42).

Professor G. R. EVANS (Emeritus Professor of Medieval Theology and Intellectual History), read by the Senior Proctor:

Deputy Vice-Chancellor, I have expressed concerns here before about the wisdom of introducing Special Ordinances, but that is now to happen if the Privy Council consents, so I will say no more about that, except to draw attention once more to the possible implications of moving the protections of Statute U down a legislative level. This has been done in other universities required to embed the Model Statute in their statutes under Education Reform Act 1988 s. 202. The consequence has been a gradual erosion of the protections intended by Parliament, making it much easier to dismiss academic staff. The Regent House would have to consent of course, but then it would have to be paying more attention to Reports to the University than the number of speeches made in this House recently would suggest, or it might not notice. I hope others will have something to say about putting a 'mission' statement into the Statutes. Oxford has in its current Statute I, 3,

The principal objects of the University are the advancement of learning by teaching and research and its dissemination by every means.

I do not think this is at all exemplary but at least it is dignified and does not smack of the PR-speak of current fashion, which can be expected to date and make Cambridge look silly.

Mention of Oxford takes me to a hope that Cambridge will avoid two consequences of reworking its statutes which have become apparent in Oxford. This will be the second wholesale rearrangement of the Statutes in a generation. The Wass statutes took some getting used to. One had to learn afresh where provisions on particular points were to be found. This will now have to be done all over again.

A consequence of not readily being able to put one's finger on the domestic law on a particular matter can be that rules made below the radar of Reports to the Regent House may accidentally create conflicts within the legislation, No-one had noticed one of these in Oxford since 2009, when a high-profile controversy brought it to light. In Oxford, as in Cambridge, the University's legislative governing body has to approve allocation of substantial parts of its estates. When in 2012 it was decided to allocate the Old Indian Institute to the Martin School and move the History Faculty Library into the Radcliffe Camera, disrupting the existing collections, no Resolution about the allocation of space was put to Congregation, as would have been expected under Statute XVI, A, 4. Enquiries were made into the reason for this and it emerged that although the Statute sets a requirement for a Resolution based on a particular 'overall floor area' the measurement applied was one of 'net usable area', a phrase adopted as a Buildings and Estates Committee (BESC) 'regulation' in 2009. Naturally that device of measuring only some of the space could be used to ensure that Congregation was not asked about an allocation, as the Senior Proctor noted in a

#### 99 CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY REPORTER

letter of September 2012 to a member of Congregation who asked about it. It has taken until last week to obtain a statement through the internal Appeal Court that this committee-derived form of words 'never became part of the domestic legislation of the University' but 'nonetheless, the BESC definition has since 2009 been consistently applied by BESC and by PRAC in allocating property pursuant to Statute XVI'. It is to be hoped that a proposal to change the Statute will now be put to Congregation so that Congregation can decide whether it approves of this new wording and wants its statute to speak of 'net usable area', potentially denying it the chance to approve many allocations of portions of its estates.

This affair has also brought into prominence the danger that a reworking of the statutes can have unintended consequences. Chartered universities have recourse to their Visitors if their statutes need interpreting. Post-1992 universities are subject to the Interpretation Act 1978. Whereas in Cambridge since the 1850s, the law of the land has fixed the process for seeking interpretation of the statutes, which the University has now power to change (as in the current Statute K, 2), Oxford did not attend to this need until 1913. It retains the power to change the requirements for seeking interpretation of the statutes. It amended its provision in 1969 on the recommendation of the Franks Commission and again under the current 'post-North' statutes, now a dozen years old. All that time, general questions about interpretation of the statutes could be raised with the Vice-Chancellor by members of Congregation or since 1969 by any member of the University.

Although Congregation was told in 2001 that the Working Party which drafted the new statutes 'wishes to emphasise that it has taken the constitutional laws of the University as it finds them, or as it believes them to be' (Supplement to Gazette, 25 July, 2001), and made no substantive changes unless the law of the land required it, the Appeal Court has now found that the 'general right to open up questions of interpretation' has been taken away. Because of a quirk in the wording whose origins may be traced in the deliberations of the Working Party on a particular student disciplinary matter, only those with 'a genuine right or interest that will be affected by the outcome' may now seek interpretation of the statutes or regulations of the University. So Oxford apparently now stands alone as a university where no general question about interpretation of the statutes may be raised.

Congregation may be surprised to discover this and it may, one hopes, be minded to restore the old general rights by creating a Resolution. But the lesson is that reworking and rewording Statutes is a dangerous game if fundamental provisions can so easily be lost because no-one thought something through.

Dr S. J. COWLEY (University Council and Department of Applied Mathematics and Theoretical Physics), read by the Deputy Senior Proctor:

Deputy Vice-Chancellor, before I address the two issues I wish to air, I would like to thank both the review group and its administrative support for the work that they have done on this Technical Review. In particular, I would like to congratulate them on keeping to the spirit of the original intention, i.e. that the review was primarily a tidying-up exercise, rather than revision of substance.

The first point I wish to make concerns the proposed inclusion in the preamble to the New Statutes of the Mission Statement, i.e., The mission of the University of Cambridge is to contribute to society through the pursuit of education, learning, and research at the highest international levels of excellence.

During the correspondence with the Privy Council Office it was agreed that this would be proposed to the University. It has now been so proposed. I hope that it will be rejected. There are apparently technical legal reasons for rejecting it; as a Mathematician I do not understand these, but I gather that the University is in some sense a person and by including this statement this useful standing might be jeopardized. However, to my mind the main reason for rejecting the inclusion is that it is unnecessary. According to Wikipedia, a 'Mission Statement' should guide the actions of the organization (but that should be done by the Council and the Regent House), spell out its overall goal (surely being a university is enough), and provide a path, and guide decision-making (so no independence of thought then). It is not needed, although if the Privy Council Office wants a snappy description of what the University is up to, I refer it to Statute D, II, 4 where it is stated that

It shall be the duty of all holders of University offices ... to devote themselves to the advancement of knowledge in their subject, to give instruction therein to students, to undertake from time to time ... examining of students .., and to promote the interests of the University as a place of education, religion, learning, and research.

My second point concerns the method of revising or repealing Ordinances, now that Special Ordinances exist. To revise or repeal a Special Ordinance there *must* be a Report. For an Ordinance this is not the case, although conventionally there have been Reports when certain Ordinances have been revised or repealed. It has been agreed at the Council that the introduction of Special Ordinances will not change this convention, and in the Report of the Council on the Technical Review of the Statutes (*Reporter*, 6272, 2011–12, p. 747) it is stated that

Changes to Ordinances might also require a Report, a Discussion, a Notice, a ballot if called, and a Grace depending upon their significance but, as presently, discretion could be exercised by the Council or the General Board, as appropriate, to promote minor changes by a Notice and a Grace.

However, in my nearly seven years on the Council I perceive that there may have been a drift in what is viewed as a 'minor change'. It would be good if this drift ceased. If not, then I think that it might be important to move certain of the material that is currently in Ordinances (or which it is proposed be moved from Statutes to Ordinances) to Special Ordinances. In particular, I have concerns over the membership of certain bodies (e.g. the Regent House, the Audit Committee, Faculty Boards), appearing in Ordinances. For instance, sometime ago there was a thought that the membership of the Audit Committee might be changed by Notice rather than Report – a thought thankfully eliminated. Hence I hope that at some point the Council might ask the current working group, or another, to review the distribution of material between Ordinances and Special Ordinances.

Second-stage Report of the Council, dated 21 October 2013, on the project to fit out additional laboratory space at the Cancer Research UK Cambridge Institute building (Reporter, 6322, 2013–14, p. 49).

No remarks were made on this Report.

# **COLLEGE NOTICES**

# Elections

Hughes Hall

Elected to a Fellowship in Class E, with effect from 1 October 2013:

Ms Rowena Ironside, B.Bus., WAIT, M.Sc., LBS

#### Robinson College

Elected into a Fellowship in Class B with effect from 1 January 2014:

Dr Alexander Charles Copley, M.E.Sc., *Oxford*, Ph.D., *Q* Dr Jossy Sayir, Dipl. El.-Ing. (M.Sc.), Dr. Techn.-Wiss. (Ph.D.), *ETH*, *Zürich* 

# Vacancies

*Downing College*: Henslow Research Fellowship starting in October 2014 in any area of Biological Anthropology, Biological Sciences, or Medical and Veterinary Sciences; emolument: £20,172 to £24,049 depending on qualifications and living arrangements; tenure: three years; closing date: 9 December 2013; further particulars: http://www.dow.cam.ac.uk/index.php/joining-downing/ vacancies

*Fitzwilliam College*: Acting Chaplain, three-quarters-time appointment; tenure: 1 January to 31 March 2014; further particulars: Mrs Sarah Rowland-Jones, HR Officer, Fitzwilliam College, Cambridge, CB3 ODG (email: hr@ fitz.cam.ac.uk), or http://www.fitz.cam.ac.uk, under 'Vacancies'; closing date: 18 November 2013

Homerton College: Three Junior Research Fellowships in Biomedicine, Plant Sciences, Engineering (including but not limited to Bioengineering and Electrical and Information Engineering), Law, Geography, or Pre-Elizabethan English Literature; tenure: three years; closing date: 13 December 2013; further particulars: https://app.casc.cam.ac.uk/fas\_live/homjrf.aspx or http:// www.homerton.cam.ac.uk/vacancies

# **Events**

*Emmanuel College*: Cambridge Seminars in the History of Cartography. Andrew Macnair (University of East Anglia), presents *East Anglian large-scale county maps of the eighteenth century: what can we learn from a digital analysis*? at 5.30 p.m. on Tuesday, 26 November 2013 in the Gardner Room.

*Trinity College*: The Birkbeck Lectures for the Michaelmas Term 2013 will be given by Simon Green, Professor of Modern History, University of Leeds, on *The rise and fall of the faithful city: Christianization and dechristianization in England, 1850–1950.* Further information is available at http://www.trin.cam.ac.uk/ index.php?pageid=1367.

# **EXTERNAL NOTICES**

# **University of Oxford**

*Faculty of Oriental Studies*: Khalid bin Abdullah al Saud Professorship of the Contemporary Arab World; closing date: 9 December, 2013; further particulars: http://www. ox.ac.uk/about\_the\_university/jobs/fp/

*St Hilda's College*: Tutorial Fellowship and University Lecturership (CUF) in Philosophy; salary: £42,883– £57,581; closing date: 5 December at 12 noon; further particulars: http://www.st-hildas.ox.ac.uk

*University College*: Scott Family Junior Research Fellow; stipend: £21,383 plus benefits; closing date: 6 January 2014 at 12 noon; further particulars: http://www.univ.ox. ac.uk/content/scott-family-junior-research-fellow

Notices for publication in the *Reporter* should be sent to the Editor, Cambridge University Reporter, Registrary's Office, The Old Schools, Cambridge, CB2 1TN (tel. 01223 332305, email **reporter.editor@admin.cam.ac.uk**). Copy should be sent as early as possible in the week before publication; short notices will be accepted up to 4 p.m. on Thursday for publication the following Wednesday. Inclusion of notices is at the discretion of the Editor.

© 2013 The Chancellor, Masters, and Scholars of the University of Cambridge

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, without the prior permission in writing of the University of Cambridge, or as expressly permitted by law.

The University is the owner or the licensee of all intellectual property rights in the site and in the material published on it. Those works are protected by copyright laws and treaties around the world. All such rights are reserved.

Material prepared for the primary purpose of providing information about the University of Cambridge, its teaching and research activities, its subsidiary companies and organizations with which it is associated or affiliated has been placed on the site by the University ('University Material').

Subject to statutory allowances, extracts of material from the site may be accessed, downloaded, and printed for your personal and non-commercial use and you may draw the attention of others within your organization to material posted on the site.